MAGNOLIA BRIDGE
(GARFIELD STREET BRIDGE)

CHRONOLOGY OF MODIFICATIONS
1929 to 2001

Theoriginal bridge was built in 1929. The east end formed an intersection with 150
Avenue West at West Garfield Street, much asit istoday. The approach rises at a 5%
grade to provide the necessary clearance over therailroad tracks. Shortly after crossing
the tracks a two-lane on-off ramp was built in the center of the structure to serve the then
Port Commission facilities, with through traffic traveling either side of thisramp. At near
the half way point two ramps were built on each side of the bridge to connect to the 23"
Avenue West trestle which connected to Magnolia hill at 23" and West Newton Street.
From this point the main bridge then rises at a 6% grade to connect to the hill at West
Galer Street near Dartmouth Avenue West. The origina structureis poured in place
concrete. All elements, footings, columns, bracing, deck, sidewalk and railings were
concrete. The exception was the two ramps connecting to 23" which were wooden
trestles as was the 23rd trestle. (Vault Plan 782-39) The 23" Avenue West trestle and
ramps were removed sometime prior to 1946. (See 1946 aerial photo) Presumably this
occurred when the Navy condemned the property and built their facility in 1942.

In 1957 a new grade separation structure was built at the east end of the bridge. This
allowed north bound traffic on Elliot Avenue West to go over 15" Avenue West and
connect directly to the bridge just west of therailroad tracks. This structure has“T”
shaped column-bents with concrete girders and concrete deck. The five support columns
west of the railroad tracks were built to match the octagonal shape of the original bridge
columns. (Vault Plan 782-94)

In 1960 the first of two projects was done to strengthen the west half of the bridge. This
project installed steel cross bracing at six locations to provide additional strength in the
longitudinal direction. (Vault Plan 782-100) The second project, completed in 1961,
installed steel trusses for deck dab stiffening; removed the north sidewalk and rail,
replacing with a facia beam and an aluminum tubular rail; removed a portion of the south
sidewalk, replacing with facia beam and a standard aluminum pedestrian railing; and
installed new light poles (Vault Plan 782-104)

In 1974 the eastern half of the bridge was retrofitted with steel trusses to provide
additional strength to the deck slab, similar to what was done on the westerly portion in
1961. (Vault Plan 777-222)

In 1981 the north siderail that was installed in 1961 was removed and replaced with a
Jersey-type concrete barrier-railing. The same type barrier was placed aong the south
curb lineto protect pedestrians from moving traffic. (Vault Plan 782-147)
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In 1991 new ramps were constructed to serve the Elliot Bay Marina. These were
connected to the ramp stubs that were left from removal of the old 23" Avenue trestlein
the early 40's. These ramps are concrete with battered steel column supports. (Vault
Plan 782-131)

In 1997 alandslide damaged the bracing between the bridge columns at the westerly most
end of the bridge. New steel cross bracing and deck support structures were installed to
repair and strengthen this section of the bridge. (Vault Plan 782-200)

The bridge was again damaged by the February 28, 2001 Nisqually earthquake. Nearly
half of the original concrete lateral braces from bent 49 through bent 75 were damaged
beyond repair. All of the concrete braces within this section of the bridge were replaced
with tubular steel bracing. (Vault Plan 782-234)
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